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BEFORE THE TENNESSEE REGULATORY AUTHORITY
In the matter of:

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. Case No. 10-00007
d/b/a AT&T Southeast d/b/a AT&T Tennessee v.

dPi Teleconnect, LI.C

A T

ANSWER and COUNTERCILAIM of dPi TELECONNECT, L..L.C.
dPi Telecommunications, LLC. (“dPi”) hereby answers the complaint filed by BellSouth
Telecommunications, Inc. d/b/a AT&T Southeast d/b/a AT&T Tennessee (“AT&T”) and brings
a related counterclaim.
dPi’s ANSWER

1. In response to the specific allegations set forth in the Complaint, all allegations
not specifically admitted are denied.

2. Generally, dPi has never applied for the “Word of Mouth” promotions, and in
connection with the other promotions, has never withheld payment of the difference
between the full amount of a cash back promotion (which dPi is actually entitled to) and
the amount actually credited by AT&T/BellSouth (the promotional amount less the
wholesale discount).

3. dPi responds in more detail to AT&T’s particular statements as shown below.

4. With regard to the section entitled “PARTIES”: paragraphs 1 and 2 require no
response from dPi.

5. The allegations set forth at Paragraph 3 of the Complaint are admitted.

6. With regard to the section entitled “DPI’S BREACH OF ITS
INTERCONNECTION AGREEMENT(S)”and responding to the allegations set forth in

Paragraph 4 of the Complaint, dPi admits that in 2003 it entered into an interconnection



agreement with AT&T and purchased telecommunications services pursuant to that
agreement. Except as expressly admitted herein, the remaining allegations of Paragraph

4 of the Complaint are denied.

7. Responding to the allegations set forth in Paragraph 5 of the Complaint, dPi
admits that in 2007 it entered into an interconnection agreement with AT&T and
purchased telecommunications services pursuant to that agreement. Except as expressly
admitted herein, the remaining allegations of Paragraph 5 of the Complaint are denied.

8. dPi denies the allegations set forth in Paragraph 6 through Paragraph 9 of the
Complaint and demands strict proof thereof.

9. With regard to the section entitled “DPI’S ERRONEOUS REASONS FOR
NONPAYMENT” dPi denies the allegations set forth in Paragraph 10 of the Complaint
to the extent that it assumes that an unpaid balance is owed by dPi to AT&T.

10. dPi denies the allegations set forth in Paragraphs 11 and 12 of the Complaint.

11. Paragraph 13 of the Complaint purports to quote (or summarize) federal statutes.
dPi respectfully refers the Commission to such statutes for their contents, and denies any
inconsistent characterizations or allegations.

12. dPi denies the allegations set forth in Paragraph 14 of the Complaint.

13. Paragraphs 15 and 16 of the Complaint purport to quote (or summarize) federal
statutes. dPi respectfully refers the Commission to such statutes for their contents, and
denies any inconsistent characterizations or allegations.

14. The allegations set forth in Paragraph 17 of the Complaint, relating to
“JURISDICTION?, are admitted

2305086 v1 -2-

111484-001 2/25/2010



15. In response to the “REQUEST FOR RELIEF” section, dPi denies that AT&T is
entitled to any relief whatsoever.

AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES

16. AT&T has failed to state a claim upon which relief can be granted.

17. AT&T’s claims are barred by the doctrines of unclean hands, laches, forbearance,
estoppel, and waiver.

18. AT&T’s claims are barred by the statute of limitations.

19. AT&T has (or had) a contractual obligation to pursue, escalate, and preserve its
claim to the promotional credits AT&T seeks to retract from dPi in its Complaint in
accordance with the applicable provisions of the parties” ICA(s). Upon information and
belief, AT&T failed to do so. Accordingly, AT&T should be barred from pursuing its
claims that it failed to contractually preserve.

20. AT&T has violated 47 U.S.C. § 251(c)(4), 47 C.F.R. 51.605 and 47 C.F.R.
51.613(b) by failing to provide Respondent with the appropriate resale promotion credit,
and by failing to obtain Commission approval before placing restrictions on resale.

21. AT&T’s claims are barred and/or preempted, in whole or in part, by federal laws
and regulations, including (without limitation) 47 U.S.C. § 251(c)(4), 47 C.F.R. 51.605
and 47 C.F.R. 51.613(b).

22. The FCC has primary jurisdiction over all or part of AT&T’s claims.

23. AT&T’s claims are barred, in whole or in part, by its failure to mitigate any
damages allegedly sustained.
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24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

AT&T’s right to recover, if any, is offset in whole or in part, for the reasons stated
in dPi’s counterclaim.

dPi asserts the right to attorneys’ fees after successful defense of this matter to the
extent allowed under the terms of its Interconnection Agreements with AT&T and/or
applicable law.

dPi reserves the right to amend this answer to add other affirmative defenses
which are determined to be applicable upon discovery in this case.

dPi’s COUNTERCLAIM

AT&T seeks a determination that, if it is required to extend cash back promotions
to CLECs at all, then it should not be required to extend to CLECs the entire amount of
the promotion, but rather a lesser amount derived by reducing the promotional amount by
the resale discount. Upon close examination, AT&T’s contention is incorrect and
incompatible with the requirements of the FTA, harms competition, and should be
repudiated. To comply with the law, the Commission should properly require
AT&T/BellSouth to provide the full amount of the cash back promotions to CLECs.

The overarching purpose behind the FTA’s resale provisions is to permit CLECs
to purchase, for subsequent resale, services from the ILEC at a lower rate than the ILEC
sells those services at retail. In short, wholesale should always be less than retail.

The flaw in AT&T’s position is dramatically illustrated by the promotions in
question, where applying the formula advanced by AT&T results in a situation where the

cash back promotion reduces the retail sale price of the offer in question to a point where
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it is lower than the wholesale price. An easy hypothetical example showing the effect of

applying AT&T’s method is shown in Figure 1, below:

Figure 1.

Comparison of Results of applying AT&T’s proposed method for calculating promotion
amount due resellers to (applying hypothetical 20% wholesale discount to both tariff
price and to promotional price).

Special/promotional

Standard/Tariffed retail cash back

price offer Net retail price Net wholesale price

$50 $0 $50 $40

$50 $50 $0 $0 (retail now same
as wholesale)

$50 $100 $-50 $-40 (retail now
LESS than
wholesale)

23. Obviously, adopting a model which results in the wholesale price that is no longer

less than the retail price guts the purpose of the FTA and dooms competition.

Accordingly, AT&T’s model cannot be correct.

24. The appropriate method for determining the wholesale price is to first calculate

the amount of the avoided cost discount, then subtract the avoided cost from the actual

sales price. See 47 USC 252(d)(3)." At the times when these resale agreements were first

built in 1996 and 1997, the avoided cost (and thus the wholesale discount) was calculated

47 USC 252(d)(3): Wholesale prices for telecommunications services

For the purposes of section 251(c)(4) of this title, a State commission shall determine
wholesale rates on the basis of retail rates charged to subscribers for the
telecommunications service requested, excluding the portion thereof attributable to any
marketing, billing, collection, and other costs that will be avoided by the local exchange

carrier.
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25.

upon the ILECs’ standard tariffed pricing, at the time still regulated. The calculations
were not based on promotion prices, which did not then exist, and which in any event by
definition are not standard prices, but the equivalent of a special sale price. To determine
the avoided cost, one multiplies the resale discount factor times the tariffed price. This
gives one the base amount of the avoided cost, and thus the amount by which the
wholesale amount should be lower than the retail price. Obviously, there will always
be costs to providing service, regardless of what the sales price is, and although initially
formulated as a percentage to avoid recalculating the costs as tariffed rates rose, the
avoided cost is best considered a fixed amount of the standard, or tariffed, rate.

Since the actual sales price is not necessarily the tariffed price, but can be lowered
by short term “promotional” offers, i.e., special sales, the FCC has required ILECs to
make the benefits of those promotions available to CLECs.? The FCC has discussed the
promotion issue at length in various dockets, notably including Local Competition
Order.? Indeed, in the Local Competition Order the Commission expressly recognizes
that ILECs could use promotions like AT&T’s to manipulate their retail rates and
effectively avoid their resale obligations. Consequently, the Commission found that the

resale requirement of section 251(c)(4) of the Act

3

47 C.F.R. § 51.605 Additional obligations of incumbent local exchange carriers.

(a) An incumbent LEC shall offer to any requesting telecommunications carrier any
telecommunications service that the incumbent LEC offers on a retail basis to
subscribers that are not telecommunications carriers for resale at wholesale rates ....

In the Matter of Implementation of the Local Competition Provisions in the

Telecommunications Act of 1996, First Report and Order, 11 FCC Rcd 15954, 9907 (rel. Aug. 8,
1996) (“Local Competition Order”).
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makes no exception for promotional or discounted offerings, including
contract and other customer-specific offerings. We therefore conclude that no
basis exists for creating a general exemption from the wholesale requirement for
all promotional or discount service offerings made by incumbent LECs. A
contrary result would permit incumbent LECs to avoid the statutory resale
obligation by shifting their customers to nonstandard offerings, thereby
eviscerating the resale provisions of the 1996 Act. Local Competition Order, 11
FCC Rcd at 15970, 948 (footnote omitted)(emphasis added).

26. Consequently, the price to which the avoided cost discount is applied is simply
the lower of the tariffed standard price, or, if any, the promotional price in effect for the

services in question. Stated another way, the three steps to finding the wholesale price

are:

STEP 1: Find the retail price in the tariff.

STEP 2: Multiply the standard tariffed retail price by the wholesale
discount factor. This gives you the value of the avoided costs.

STEP 3: Subtract the avoided cost from the retail sales price, which

is standard tariffed price, or, if a promotion applies, the price after applying the promotion.
The results of using this method are shown below in Figure 2. Note that by using this

method, the wholesale price is always the same amount less than the retail price, which is
a better reflection of the fact that the cost to provide the services is constant regardless of

what the sales price turns out to be.

Figure 2.
Comparison of results of applying just aveided cost discount based on standard/tariffed
retail price

Standard/Tariffed Special/promotional
price retail discount Net retail price Net wholesale price
$50 $0 $50 $40 (avoided cost is
$10)
$50 $50 $0 $-10 (wholesale still
$10 less than retail)
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$50 $100 $-50 $-60 (wholesale still
$10 less than retail)

27. Because dPi has consistently been credited not the full amount of the promotions
to which it is entitled, but instead by that amount less the wholesale discount, dPi is
entitled recover the difference, and hereby pleads for the same.

WHEREFORE, having responded to the Complaint, dPi respectfully requests that the
Authority issue an Order dismissing the Complaint and granting such further relief as dPi is
entitled to in law and equity.

Respectfully submitted,
Malish & Cowan, P.L.L.C.

1403 West Sixth Street
Austin, Texas 78703

(512) 476-8591/ le) 477-8657/fax

Christopher Mahsh
State Bar No. 00791164
cmalish@malishcowan.com

and

BRADLEY ARANT BOULT CUMMINGS LLP

o Jla e

ﬁenry
State B No 000272

1600 Division Street, Suite 700
Nashville, Tennessee 37203
Phone: (615) 252-2363

Fax: (615)252-6363
hwalker@babc.com

Attorneys for dPi Teleconnect, LLC
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I hereby certify that true copy of the foregoing document has been served on AT&T

through its attorneys on this February 25, 2010, via facsimile and First Class Mail.

Guy M. Hicks

Joelle J. Philips

General Attorneys - AT&T TN
333 Commerce Street, Suite 2101
Nashville, TN 37201-3300

Fax: (615) 214-7406
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